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R Y Our Organization

A (AI-F- - &= As at 31 March 2011, the
PP ) et FTAA Organization employed 108 regular
108 4 > §pF R 1 128 4 o staff and 128 casual workers. The

R A T R o organization chart is at Appendix 1.

EE A RES < L2 VMO office building and wholesale
RS vegetable market



ECa| Our Vision

= AET AFEX R To provide the community with a
B AR e Ap AT reliable and plentiful supply of safe
FRFE OB RRE AR L L and quality vegetables and to facilitate
EIVEFEREE the sustainable development of local
agriculture.
i Our Mission
B A o SR BB To manage the wholesale vegetable
Lo oM R R market ~ with  professionalism,
B g mEFPFED F o dedication, courtesy and efficiency to :
-
® secure the efficient and orderly
® ’ﬁf}‘ F j‘”ﬁ ;jf" 3 wholesale marketing of safe and
R i;i %?’: 4; 1; f:x‘;’ﬁj#b quality vegetables;
ke e ® provide a fair and healthy

HRETERYE
® AP A RSE A B
BEFEE o

marketing  environment  for
traders to conduct business; and

® plough back surplus for the
improvement of local
agriculture.
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The Marketing Advisory
Board

The Director of Marketing is
assisted by the statutory Marketing
Advisory Board with its members
appointed by the Chief Executive.
During the financial year of
2010-11, the Board discussed and
advised the Director on important
issues including annual financial
estimates of the Vegetable
Marketing Organization (VMO)
and its Agricultural Development
Fund, general business operation
and reports of VMO, and progress
of agricultural development

projects jointly launched by VMO
and the Agriculture, Fisheries and
Conservation Department (AFCD).
The membership and terms of
reference of the Board are at
Appendix 2.




PRF5 § 7] OUR SERVICES

U FEE Vegetable Wholesaling

EALEL BB EMH FEEIR VMO mainly provides wholesale
F* 2 A YR ) e services and a platform to vegetable
BHIELETORE R ES wholesalers and buyers for wholesale
BERE cF RSP trading through its wholesale market at
P73 gt R 10% i Cheung Sha Wan. VMO charges
BT ﬁ ?”f‘"g ® wholesalers a commission up to 10%

AT TE RO F o 40
PRI ER Y PR F AL
Btk EE B 4%hw fo o

of the total value of all sales for the
provision of trading facilities,
accounting and pesticide residue
testing services, and rebates them up to
4% of the commission for services not

required.

I, R A 2 Market trading floor
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Refrigerated truck

£ 4 8

Premium Vegetables

Premium Vegetable Section (PVS) is
set up to help local farmers market
their  fresh,

vegetables to up-market caterers such

quality and safe

as hotels, restaurants, elderly homes,
supermarkets and lunch box suppliers
through networks

established by the

promotional
Organization.
The PVS selects, processes and packs
vegetables according to customers’
specifications and delivers them to

customers by refrigerated trucks.

The Premium Vegetable Packaging
Center has been certified by the
Hong Kong Organic Resource
Centre as meeting the standards for
processing organic products, and was
granted the “Organic Processing
Certificate” and “Organic  (In

Conversion) Processing Certificate”.

~ Onsaleat supermarket
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Monitoring of Pesticide
Residues and Heavy Metal
Contamination on Vegetables

VMO has been operating a pesticide
residues laboratory at the market since
1998 to provide quality assurance to its
clients. Consignments found to be
contaminated with pesticide residues are
referred to the Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department for follow-up action.
In addition, VMO also provides heavy
metal  contamination  analysis  on

vegetables.

BER T R

h:Pesticide residué test

£ hBsef s E R

Heavy metal
contamination
analysis on vegetables
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Supporting Local Agriculture

VMO works in partnership with AFCD to
promote local agricultural development
through programmes like the Accredited
Farm Scheme, Organic Farming
Conversion Scheme and Land
Rehabilitation Scheme. It also ploughs back
its surplus to establish the Agricultural
Development Fund to support agricultural
development projects. Currently the Fund
has a capital of $300 million. During the
year, it dispensed $27,816,786 to support
various agricultural development projects,
including the promotion of organic farming,
improvement of VMO’s market facilities,
and organization of different promotion
activities such as FarmFest 2011.

VMO’s Agricultural Products Scholarship
Fund aims at promoting education and
training in agriculture. The Fund currently
has a total capital of $8 million and offers
scholarship grants and loans to students
pursuing agriculture and related studies. It
also provides financial support for farmers’
children to pursue better education. In
2010-11, it issued $432,500 in scholarship
grants to 22 eligible students.



oo S Kd [ F & The Auditors’ Report, Balance Sheet,
Income and Expenditure Account, Cash
BB ASBES K& O BEF i
Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in

P T &
¥ FALRE kiR Funds and Notes to the Financial
EE:AERPELCRER Statement of the Agricultural Products
£ £ 2 pAAr4R 4 i u ) Scholarship Fund for the financial year
i\:% Y SN 2010-11 are at Appendices 10 to 15

1 respectively.
e Yo 11$2,608,000 Furthermore, VMO has set aside
o R EEAY R A $2,608,000 to establish the VMO Loan
. ﬁ 53 % 3 174 & ,%4 F Fund to provide credit facilities to farmers
= . ; as operational capital. During the year, it
?\j‘c’t‘!’.j\-&}i’?fﬁﬂgﬁ p p g y
N issued 29 loans totaling $1,519,000. As at
L - = 3
a TF’ #r 29 7 +$1,519,000 31 March 2011, the Fund had an
oo AR Tl F =4 = accumulated surplus of $11,736,273.
TP RREFAZDRN
PARBEE 5 811,736,273 ~ o

a3 FE g AN L Tk Maintenance of Vegetable — 812 35 2 4 & 1F4& Maintenance of Vegetable
R () Marketing Co-operative £ # 4 ({5 ) Marketing Co-operative

Society Building (Before) Society Building (After)
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Supporting Agricultural

Development Projects
Accredited Vegetables

VMO and AFCD have been jointly
running the Accredited Farm Scheme
since 1994. The scheme accredited
vegetables farms in Hong Kong or
Mainland operated by Hong Kong
citizens for adoption of good
horticultural practices and proper use of
pesticides.

Accredited vegetables are sampled and
tested to ensure that there is no excess
pesticide residue before distribution for
sale at retailer outlets designated by
VMO. Consumers can identify these
outlets by the VMO *“accredited
retailers” logo carried by the retailers.

As at 31 March 2011, 285 farms
(including 34 farms in Guangdong
Province) covering a total area of 1,812
ha had been accredited. Local
accredited farms are located at the main
production areas including Ta Ku Ling,
Tsiu Keng, Ng Ka Tsuen, Sheung Shui,
Castle Peak, Shek Kong, Kwu Tung,
Ping Shan, Fung Kat, Tuen Mun, Koon
Lam, Ha Tsuen, Lam Tei, Kam Tin, San
Tin, Ping Che and Fanling. The average
daily supply of accredited produce was
60 tonnes. At present, there are 192
accredited retail outlets located in
different  districts to  facilitate
consumers shopping for accredited
vegetables.

10
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Organic Vegetables

Organic farming adopts
knowledge-based farming methods
derived from modern understanding
of biology and ecology, and stresses
nature conservation and harmony
with the environment.  Organic
farmers do not wuse chemical
fertilizers  and  pesticides  or
genetically modified seeds.

AFCD and VMO have been jointly
providing supporting services to
local organic farmers. While AFCD
provides technical support, VMO
develops and arranges marketing
channels with potential for higher
return for local organic farmers.

VMO  collects fresh  organic
vegetables every day directly from
farms and transports them to its
Premium Vegetable Packing Centre
for grading and packaging. The
organic produce will then be
delivered to hotels, hospitals and
designated retail outlets including
supermarket chains, shops at MTR
stations and health food kiosks for
sale.
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As at 31 March 2011, 158 farms in
Pat Heung, Sheung Shui, Tai Kong
Po, Tai Po, Tuen Mun, Ng Ka Tsuen,
Ping Che, Fanling, Fung Kat, Shap
Pat Heung and Sun Tin covering a
area of about 62.67 ha had
joined the “Organic Farming Support

total

Service” Scheme. Together they
produce some 4 tonnes of organic
vegetables daily.

During the year, VMO actively
participated in various food fairs and
trade exhibitions including the Hong
Kong Flower Show and Food Expo to

promote local organic produce.

Organic farming technical seminar

Organic farm facility
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Introduction of New

Varieties of Vegetables
Apart from expanding the sale
network for fresh vegetables, VMO
also actively promotes new /
improved vegetable varieties to the
public. New / improved vegetable
varieties become widely known
among the public through various
exhibition activities and promotion
by the Premium Vegetable Section.
Examples of the new / improved
varieties include rock melon, small
seedless water melon, small seeded
water melon and small pumpkin. In
addition, the previously promoted
new / improved varieties such as
greenhouse cucumber, greenhouse

sweet red pepper and sweet melon

are well known to the public.

Rock melon

;AF R Small seedless
water melon

17



3L E A Small water melon /| & A 1T Small pumpkin
(P %) (Ah Shek).

Joa A Small pumpkin. -] & A& Small pumpkin
(ihd) (Sin Koo) (& 4 3%) (Mat Boon no.3)

o A ' Small pumpkin % % 3 /& Greenhouse cucumber
(8 #) (Bak Chau)

e d B st Greenhouse sweet  # A Sweet melon
red pepper

18



a2 Overseas Study Tour

Ay, b SRR R S The Organization sponsored an
VA Bd AR R4 overseas study tour in November
2010 for a delegation of local farmers
ho o 3 ‘e 2 :
AN LR g~ R 2 and advisory board members to study
SR Al RRE S 4 - SIS 4 the agricultural development,
; : vegetable wholesale, agricultural
o 2t R R = ,
. I R aa) education and related facilities and
FREFEEPH R EKR measures in South Africa in order to
e enhance the competitiveness of local
TR MM S fopeE 0 1M
farmers.
HB AR AiRL A o
\ T2
ol
B : Z WY b S
Eary e
PRI Overseas Study Tour

19
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Promotional Activities

During the year, VMO promoted local
organic and accredited vegetables to
the public through various channels
including taking part in the Cathay
Pacific International Chinese New Year
Night Parade, AgriPro Asia and Food
Expo, conducting promotional
activities at offices of commercial
enterprises, supermarkets, restaurant,
schools, private clubs and country
clubs, and organizing the FarmFest
2011.

In addition, VMO also published the
“Fish ~ /  \egetable Marketing

Organizations Newsletter” for its
institutional clients to enhance their
understanding about our Organizations
and products.

A Gh R £ S ng £ 2(2011)

20

FarmFest (2011)
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R34z 37% The Cathay Pacific
F"Z w2 & International

Chinese New Year
Night Parade

= 9 Booth at Food Expo
A (2010)

B rzessmn (y

APEC (TEA#EH & feil )
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(845 2R e Promotional activities at the Ve | 2 F/VMO Newsletter
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IMPROVEMENT OF
MARKET ENVIRONMENT &
THE PROTECTION OF
ENVIRONMENT

VMO properly maintains its Cheung Sha
Wan Vegetable Market to provide a good
trading environment to its clients and staff.
During the year, VMO completed various
renovation and improvement projects
including replacement of the vent house
windows at the roof of the trading

compound.

In addition, the VMO strives to make full
use of natural resources and reduce market
waste. One of the measures taken is
sun-drying unsold vegetables for sale as the

dry products.

iﬁiﬂ i

| ——

22

Replacement of the vent house windows
at the roof of the trading compound



P i LT ' The making of
sun-dried vegetables

Numerous varieties of
VMO sun-dried products

23
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In 2010-11, VMO market remained
to be the largest and the busiest fresh
market in

vegetables wholesale

Hong Kong. Throughput in the
155,546

representing some 23.8%

year reached tonnes,
of all
vegetables consumed in Hong Kong.
223

wholesalers and 1,573 buyers and

It provided services to
supplied premium vegetables to 94
and 192

Detailed

contract customers

accredited retailers.
information on the throughput by
is at

quantity, value and price

Appendix 3.

VMO had a surplus of $20,336,901
at the end of the year. The Auditors'
Report, Balance Sheet, Income and
Expenditure Account, Statement of
Cash Flow

Statement and Notes to the Financial

Changes in Funds,

Statement for the financial year
2010-11 are at Appendices 4 to 9

respectively.
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Summary of Annual Throughput

2,500 -

1,989
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Summary of surplus and expenditure
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Meeting Future Challenges

Looking to the future, VMO will
still face challenges such as low
wholesale vegetable price, strained
supply due to increased domestic
consumption in the Mainland and
the growing trend of direct
distribution of vegetables to retail
outlets. As such, VMO has to seek
added value to the resources
available and streamline its
operation for better efficiency and

services to clients.

In the coming year, VMO will

upgrade the closed circuit

television  system and  the
accounting system to provide better
services for market users. In
addition, VMO will continue to
assist local vegetable farmers to
extend their market and build up a
local brand name to promote local

premium vegetables.

26
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Visitors
i 73 4@5% N4 In  2010-11, the following institutional
delegations and visitors visited VMO:
BETRT R 2 SRER g
Yk
FREET 5 The Agricultural Trade Office, U.S. Consulate General,
LR i whELL Hong Kong
BB KIFE R 79 g The Chartered Institution of Water and Environment
Management (Hong Kong Branch)
AGY F Rk The Divisional Officers of Futian District, China
A TN | The Delegation of the Environmental Protection Department
I B E R/ 1»%;?5 % o & The French Trade Commission, Consulate General of
France in H.K. & Macau
LR A S Friends of the Earth
B AERESENLE The Hong Kong & Macao Affaires Office of Guangdong
Provincial People’s Government
FW-kE2EETE LB The Netherlands Fruit and Vegetable Trade Delegation
7 ;gg FiR g AR HER L Ms. Noel Yee-Man Siu, PhD, member of the Marketing
Advisory Board
B LEE BE LT RE An Organic Farming Delegation from Guangdong Province
and Hong Kong
LR fég?_ FERTE(H) Permanent Secretary (Food)
G2 2 A R EREE(G4)
BiEzid
£ y\#u? = i%‘%ﬁﬁf %Aé—

Mrs Marion Lai
EF S e BB A

4y

Chi-kuen, J.P., from the Food and Health Bureau
=2
VEAAKE PR

i Chan
The Principal Assistant Secretary (Food), Mr. Kevin Yeung,
from the Food and Health Bureau

The Secretary General Ms. Maria Cavit of World Union of

Wholesale Markets
The Shenzhen Cereals Group Co., Ltd
Tong College
75 EP

)

School
.

B8

The Students of The Church of Christ in China Hoh Fuk

The Students of Jordan Valley St. Joseph's Catholic Primary
The Students of Hong Kong Institute of Wocational
Education
&3k & 33
of Hong Kong

BRAEE LT g% %< R

o 22 gl %8
AE R

The Students from United College, the Chinese University

27

The Vice Mayor of Dali Government, Nanhai District
Foshan City, Guangdong Province, Mr. Zou Shao Xiong
We Love Hong Kong Association



e .

2R P AT L Visit by the Secretary 3 B K 4 AHegL R . Visit by the members of
F General of World Union of 42+ the Marketing
Wholesale Markets Advisory Board

" " =
Sy, \ 3 _ =

. // : &
Bkt 2 R EREE Visit by the Chartered 7 &% & 0% 2 /% % <) Visit by the Vice Mayor of

(¥ I

B Institution of Water and 424 & B3E Dali Government, Nanhai
Environment Management District, Foshan City,

(Hong Kong Branch) Guangdong Province,

China

b IRz Visit by Friends of the 4 8 & £ % v &g 4 Visit by the students
Earth  jr2» of Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education

28
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Appendix 1

FiRit B i E R

The Organization Chalt of the Vegetable Marketing Organization

& R
Director of Marketing
| GERMEAE
| Marketing Advisory Board
r|JL. 1:6}% :
General Manager

e Lk
=it RaD

Sentor Manager Headquarters

EEFHFA  miEEEE LE = gital HRaElgEta = 7810 £ FEAT
Premium Market Laboratory Accounnts Headquarters Personnel Internal Supplies
Vegetable Operations Section Accounts Section Audit Section

Section Section Section
EERE BFEEL TSR [k 4 HEEE(L JEEL f8IE (L ft FERTE (£
i Chief (EZE) (= Chief Personnel Internal Auditor Supplies
Marketing Supervisory Marlet Market Accountant Officer Officer
Manager Officer Manager Manager
(Promotion) (Developme nt) (Aceonmts)
48 (TR E 128 1‘5&% 10 k& 45 T8 ENICd= k& k& L {ug&

WHELE  W=F1

10 Staff 45 Staff 3 Btaff 1 Btaff 1 Btaff 1 Btaff
43 Staff 128 Staff
11 2 shifts 1n 3 shifts

et 7011¢3ﬂ315 ﬁ*’%“;ﬁf\#ﬁa [ 247 )
Eljﬁlljxl_]ﬁ EREEET

N

Remarks © #Total number of staff in V14O as at 31.3.2011 was 247 including
11 staff concurrently serving Fish / Vegetable Marketing
Organization.
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Appendix 2
B AR o [F]

MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE OF
THE MARKETING ADVISORY BOARD

B AE §° [F]

Terms of reference

SEMELR A B IR o L] ik

R Ao

FRERY Rl -2 EH w7 E T H#

The board is a statutory consultative body for advising the Chief Executive upon any matters referred to it by

the Chief Executive or the Director of Marketing.

Rg =
bershlp

EW: ]
Chairman
T AERITHE L

Mr. WONG Chi-kong, Alan, JP

= R
Members

g A4 MH
Mr. TANG Nuen-fun

wWRELL
Mr. TANG Yuk-wah

Bedog £ 4
Mr. LAW Yu-bor

oAE LA
Mr. CHAN Wing-on

% i 3 44 BBS, MH
Mr. CHEUNG Fo-tai, BBS, MH

L
Miss KUNG Yin-ha, Cecilia

BrRefL
Dr. Fook Yee-man, Noel

Figid
Mr. LI Sik-kim, Robert

(¥ ok )
(Dlrector of Marketing)

AR EERAS G TALG UF EH S QAR K
Chairman of the Federation of Vegetable Marketlng
Co-operative Societies, Ltd.

The Flrst Vice-Chairman of the Federation of Vegetable
Marketing Co-operative Societies, Ltd.

A FEFAN L TG IF EHE ALY - BT L
The Second Vice- Chalrman of the Federation of Vegetable
Marketing Co-operative Societies, Ltd.

X B ITR G E 4 WP FE ﬁ‘r\@_\zq_
Managing D|rector, Tai Hing Worldwide Development Ltd.

AEE g IRREF
Director, Hoi Leng Palaza Restaurant

kiR ERRER
Managing Director, lce Master Ltd.

ABEEAED B LR
Associate Professor, Department of Marketing,
Hong Kong Baptist University

VR TAIE: Dol Nk L O =R LD
General Manager (Research D|V|5|ons), Consumer Search
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Appendix 3A

Major Vegetables marketed through the Vegetable Marketing Organization

) RERF > F 20HEEDBFEFHES S d gy
Top 20 vegetables sold through the Cheung Sha Wan Wholesale Vegetable Market (By

weight)
o] TE(7) & e b F x 358 ($7)
Species Weight Percentage of Sales Val‘u;($) Percentage Avg. Price
(Catty) Total of Total ($/Catty)
1 E
Flowering 55,268,452 21.49% 237,896,811.20 25.52% 4.30
cabbage
2 N4 12,345,856 4.80% 47,934,084.10 5.14% 3.88
Chinese kale
3 . L F 10,014,033 3.89% 21,783,508.10 2.34% 2.18
Chinese lettuce
4 L 8,423,380 3.28% 27,159,116.70 2.91% 3.22
Red tomato
5 v 3
White cabbage, 8,168,320 3.18% 32,447,899.80 3.48% 3.97
small
6 e 7,785,418 3.03% 11,792,833.00 1.27% 151
Wax gourd
7 - 0 0
White cabbage 7,341,340 2.85% 23,682,094.70 2.54% 3.23
8 .;t ” 7,094,165 2.76% 21,867,959.60 2.35% 3.08
Hairy gourd
9 3
European 7,072,155 2.75% 12,860,416.60 1.38% 1.82
varieties cabbage
10 RE? 6,589,598 2.56% 9,927,820.30 1.07% 151
adish
11 1¥
Wong choi 6,539,625 2.54% 16,811,374.00 1.80% 2.57
cabbage
i 6,490,323 2.52% 16,671,490.10 1.79% 257
later spinach
13 A
. 5 . 5,946,775 2.31% 27,180,515.90 2.92% 4,57
Spring onion
14 R 5,114,703 1.99% 17,542,664.90 1.88% 3.43
Chinese spinach
15 FoF
White cabbage, 4,504,521 1.75% 12,868,443.60 1.38% 2.86
green
16 e
P 4,426,864 1.72% 15,552,963.70 1.67% 351
otato
17 A
4,162,686 1.62% 12,060,062.30 1.29% 2.90
Water cress
18 FEETER
. 4,157,305 1.62% 12,505,442.80 1.34% 3.01
Italian lettuce
ENPY
19 i 3,751,061 1.46% 10,351,476.90 1.11% 2.76
Green cucumber
20 om 3,745,667 1.46% 14,832,561.20 1.59% 3.96
Bitter cucumber
NN
'f’gc;t’z;ll 178,942,245 69.58% 603,729,539.50 64.77% 3.37
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1) 468§ &3t > § 20 S D BEEPF D J i ngr g

Top 20 vegetables sold through the Cheung Sha Wan Wholesale Vegetable Market

(By value)
&1 £E(7) ®F R i F | ToH ($)
Species Weight Percentage BRE Percentage Avg. Price
(Catty) of Total | SalesValue(®) | jerop ($/Catty)
1 E
Flowering 55,268,452 21.49% 237,896,811.20 25.52% 4.30
cabbage
2 W W
. 12,345,856 4.80% 47,934,084.10 5.14% 3.88
Chinese kale
3 v EF
White cabbage, 8,168,320 3.18% 32,447,899.80 3.48% 3.97
small
4 LS 5,946,775 2.31% 27,180,515.90 2.92% 457
Spring onion
5 L 8,423,380 3.28% 27,159,116.70 2.91% 3.22
Red tomato
6 o 1,606,122 0.62% 25,137,061.40 2.70% 15.65
Pea shoot
7 vF 0 0
White cabbage 7,341,340 2.85% 23,682,094.70 2.54% 3.23
ESNLN
8 . 4 7,094,165 2.76% 21,867,959.60 2.35% 3.08
Hairy gourd
4%
9 . * 10,014,033 3.89% 21,783,508.10 2.34% 2.18
Chinese lettuce
10 1 * . 5,114,703 1.99% 17,542,664.90 1.88% 3.43
Chinese spinach
11 Exa
Wong choi 6,539,625 2.54% 16,811,374.00 1.80% 2.57
cabbage
WoE
12 = 6,490,323 2.52% 16,671,490.10 1.79% 2.57
Water spinach
13 &3
4,426,864 1.72% 15,552,963.70 1.67% 3.51
Potato
14 T 5 3,745,667 1.46% 14,832,561.20 1.59% 3.96
Bitter cucumber
15 .ﬁ 1,478,810 0.57% 12,890,482.10 1.38% 8.72
Ginger
16 RE3
White cabbage, 4,504,521 1.75% 12,868,443.60 1.38% 2.86
green
17 o
European 7,072,155 2.75% 12,860,416.60 1.38% 1.82
varieties cabbage
FEETEES
18 & 12 % 4,157,305 1.62% 12,505,442.80 1.34% 3.01
Italian lettuce
19 v e E 4,162,686 1.62% 12,060,062.30 1.29% 2.90
Water cress
20 ol 3,633,528 1.41% 11,958,027.80 1.28% 3.29
ggplant
8 ¥
'f’%t;I 167,534,628 65.14% 621,642,980.60 66.69% 3.71
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Appendix 4

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE DIRECTOR OF MARKETING ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VEGETABLE
MARKETING ORGANIZATION

(Established under the authority vested in the Director of
Marketing by the Agricultural Products (Marketing)
Ordinance, Chapter 277)

We have audited the financial statements of Vegetable
Marketing Organization (the “ Organization™) set out on
Appendices 5 to 9, which comprise the balance sheet as at
31 March 2011, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in funds and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Director of Marketing's Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Agricultural Products (Marketing) Ordinance, Chapter
277, requires the Director of Marketing to keep proper
accounts. The Director of Marketing is responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal control
as the Director of Marketing determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE DIRECTOR OF MARKETING ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VEGETABLE
MARKETING ORGANIZATION (Continued)
(Established under the authority vested in the Director of
Marketing by the Agricultural Products (Marketing)
Ordinance, Chapter 277)

Auditor's Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Director of Marketing, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Organization as at 31
March 2011, and of its deficit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

(Signed) PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 August 2011
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LELR-F
VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(BRAHEYS, FIESHEAEN)

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

BEAER
BALANCE SHEET
EF ASSETS Note
JEEIEE Non-current assets
FELHL Leasehold land 5
Y3k, AR Property, plant and equipment 6
R EBFIFIBIEE  Assets under defined benefit plan 17
B R B Vegetable Marketing Organization (“VMO™) Loans 7
EIEE Current assets
HH Inventories
MAEHEHETH VMO Loans 7
™ 5 R HoAth R K 10
Trade and other receivables
A3 F 1 14 RN SRIT R K 11
Bank deposits with maturities of more than three

months and within one year
HERBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 12
B E Total assets
#4& FUNDS
B —RHES VMO General Fund
HEAR Accumulated surplus 13
S Specific funds
HHGBHEBEHES VMO Loan Fund 7
HHGB R AEEREILSE VMO Agricultural Development Fund 8
S B &R ER AR
Funds provided from external sources for capital expenditure 14
@4 Total funds
A LIABILITIES
B A{E Non-current liabilities
REIBRIE & Provision for long service payments 16
MENEME Current liabilities
B 5 B HALREST K Trade and other payables 15
EWRIE &M Provision for long service payments 16

FiEHE AL Vegetable buyers' deposits

HAE Total liabilities

W4 R A Total funds and liabilities
Bt 8% O (B RT A A B AR B LR TR 4

The notes on Appendix 9 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Bigk s 9 MM BRRCHHEBERARR T ——F/NA1 B,

The financial statements on Appendix 5 to 9 were approved by the Director of Marketing on 16 August 2011,

BRI
(Signed) Director of Marketing
LEUNG Siu-fai
37
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Appendix §
BE=A=Z+T—HILEE

As at 31 March 1-Apr

2011 2010 2009

( FiR) (restated) ( FER) (restated)
14,732,329 17,589,693 18,674,645
5,450,000 4,112,000 4,274,000
90,709 : =
20,273,038 21,701,693 22,948,645
326,806 353,147 245,999
1,083,566 1,082,288 956,744
9,142,700 8,614,930 9,489,634
359,990,000 376,350,000 384,650,000
28,823,965 17,347,117 12,897,340
399,367,037 403,747,482 408,239,717
419,640,075 425,449,175 431,188,362

185,141,362

214,804,461

256,690,568

11,736,272 11,522,975 11,484,326
193,706,888 169,851,983 134,418,299
1,764,104 1,764,104 1,764,104
392,348,626 397,943,523 404,357,297
7,058,997 7,664,093 9,086,516
13,935,275 13,988,034 11,748,602
531,863 283,237 612,057
5,765,314 5,570,288 5,383,890
20,232,452 19,841,559 17,744,549
27,291,449 27,505,652 26,831,065
419,640,075 425,449,175 431,188,362




BLR B R
VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(FRAFREIRSL - BT SR

(Al amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

SRR g TS
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RREBILZE Operating income
& & Commission
[51{ff Rebates

RGOSR E PG

Net income on sales of premium vegetables

HR B Other operating income

FEBEIKZE Non-trading income

SRITIEEH]EZE  Interest income on bank deposits
HAbKr#g  Other income

#EIKZE Total income

KRB H Operating expenditure
B THHEEEMEEF] Employee benefit expenditure
BEE General working expenses

TS ~ 2= U3 Rent, rates and permit fees
FIRI A a7 ELZ  Printing and stationery

JKEE Utility services

RERfEH Maintenance and minor improvements
Z5EE  Vegetable baskets

FHE K&l Stores and equipment

FEIEZH,  Miscellaneous expenses

BTHF  Staff welfare

B35 Staff training

F}ELZE  Travelling expenses

BHZERR K HIiR  Protective clothing and uniforms
{#b2 Insurance

KEETM4:  Auditor's remuneration

TS L#E Market security

ET74&5H8 Balance carried forward

W&t
Note

18

19(a)

20

38
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Appendix 6

BE=H=1—HILEE
Year ended 31 March

2011 2010
93,214,585 88,009,592
(32,480,037) (31,001,923)
60,734,548 57,907,669
8,998,939 8,801,486
1,636,728 1,754,353
1,022,613 1,742,790

349 1,610

1,022,962 1,744,400

72,393,177 70,207,908
(35,610,808) (35,958,643)
(1,943,238) (1,881,700)
(523,459) (481,264)
(1,066,274) (1,053,508)
(2,614,176) (2,478,389)
(57,960) (71,990)
(624,160) (923,879)
(545,805) (282,445)
(334,362) (298,366)
(47,735) (7,356)
(170,655) (150,885)
(39,926) (31,661)
(529,630) (525,811)
(271,800) (264,300)
(449,748) (592,716)
(9,218,928) (9,044,770)

(44,829,736)

(45,003,413)




BEAR AR B B
VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(FBRTEREIAS: » AT SRR HERY)

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

7 & 3R R (D
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

A5 Balance brought forward

BB HI(#) Operating expenditure (Continued)
BEBW) General working expenses (Continued)
JHEE:  Transportation expenses
reE - TG fe 2805 Depreciation - markets and depots
2Kkt B A et L% Subsidy to federation and co-operative societies
24 Grants-in-aid
¥ . B {8# Publication and publicity
HECER ER B4 Provision for impaired receivable
R B2 ] Legal and professional fees
#R1TIRFE: Bank charges

HAthxH Other expenditure

P2 ~ B BT B (RS 1) B B

(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment
HEYE S Miscellaneous expenses

X H! Total expenditure
AR B RS ELS Operating surplus for the year

HATEEIRERE S/ (58 © Net surplus/(deficit) from other activities:
WA R AT R4S VMO Agricultural Development Fund
BB R EHESE VMO Loan Fund

Z4E SR Deficit for the year

AAE B H ARSI ZE Other comprehensive income for the year

AR FRRE S H58E Total comprehensive deficit for the year

Wiigsk 9 HUBMEE R A B RS0 -
The notes on Appendix 9 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

10

26(b)

21
22

BE=A=1T—HILEE
Year ended 31 March

2011

(44,829,736)

(3,059,606)
(2,771,948)
(926,336)
(249,969)
(49,724)
(100,000)
(7,465)
(3,180)

2010

(45,003,413)

(2,857,167)
(3,219,191)
(886,522)
(37,100)
(56,736)
(25,000)
(2,990)

(51,997,964)

(52,088,119)

(55,312) 5,804
(3,000) (11,700)
(58,312) (5,896)
(52,056,276) (52,094,015)
20,336,901 18,113,893
(26,145,095) (24,566,316)
213,297 38,649
(25,931,798) (24,527,667)
(5,594,897) (6,413,774)
(5,594,897) (6,413,774)




HIRMEB R
VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION

BREATHNIS, » e SR

{(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

HEBBR
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

4 H1H#5%% Balance at 1 April

A RER A 58T Total comprehensive deficit for the year

3H31H#STE Balance at 31 March

bitek O HOMTRE R AR By RS -

The notes on Appendix 9 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Appendix 7
Total funds
2011 2010
397,943,523 404,357,297
(5,594,897) (6,413,774)
392,348,626 397,943,523




HIRHME R
VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION

(BRI EREN - Pl AR e

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

REeEWER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BEERIREH SR Cash flows from operating activities
BT RS

Net cash used in operations

VSR ZS M 5 R BRI 5. VMO Loans interest received

TR E AT AR

Net cash used in operating activities

HETEHERETE Cash flows from investing activities

CUERTTHI H. Bank interest received

IEAMIZE - HE2 K 3%fif  Purchases of property, plant and equipment

HIEYIZE ~ B SR Tk

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment

3 F T4 R EHR SR T K e R AR

Net withdrawn of bank deposits with maturities of more than three months

and within one year

REEBE LR S

Net cash generated from investing activities

R KRG FEYNFEMN

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

HYPR & PR FEY)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

ERBAEREACFEY

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Fifgk 9 HUMEER AR Bl RE e o) -

The notes on Appendix 9 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bt
Note

26(a)

6
26(b)

12

TE- AN
Appendix 8

BE=H=1—HILHEE
Year ended 31 March

2011

(5,518,060)

2010

(5,272,372)

11,413 11,272
(5,506,647) (5,261,100)
1,636,922 4,573,815
(1,014,377) (3,241,838)

950 78,900
16,360,000 8,300,000
16,983,495 9,710,877
11,476,848 4,449,777
17,347,117 12,897,340
28,823,965 17,347,117
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Appendix 9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

The Vegetable Marketing Organization (the “Organization”)
is formed under the Agricultural Products (Marketing)
Ordinance, Chapter 277 which requires that, in the Kowloon
Area and in the New Territories Area, vegetables be bought
or sold wholesale at the wholesale vegetable market operated
by the Organization. A vegetable seller shall pay to the
Organization, for the services provided in respect of such
sale, a commission at the rate of ten per cent of the price for
which the vegetables are sold.

The principal activity of the Organization is to provide
services to the vegetable sellers in return of commission
calculated based on the price of the vegetable concluded in
the Organization's market.

The amount of commission income accruing to the
Organization therefore depends significantly on:

the degree of the vegetable sellers' compliance with the
Agricultural Products (Marketing) Ordinance by bringing
their products into the Organization's market for sale; and

the market conditions prevailing in the market which
influence the selling prices of the vegetables.

The address of the Organization is 757 Lai Chi Kok Road,
Cheung Sha Wan Wholesale Vegetable Market, Cheung Sha
Wan, Kowloon.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Director of Marketing
on 16 August 2011.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Organization have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ( “ HKFRS ” ) and under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Organization's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
HKFRS effective for the Organization's accounting year
beginning 1 April 2010

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
( “ HKICPA ” ) has issued a number of new standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing HKFRS which
are mandatory for the Organization's accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 April 2010. Except for Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ( “ HKAS ”) 17 (Amendment) as
mentioned below, these new standards, amendments and
interpretations do not have any impact on the Organization's
financial statements since they are not relevant to the
Organization's operation.

HKAS 17 (Amendment) “Leases”

» HKAS 17 (Amendment), ‘Leases’, deletes specific guidance
regarding classification of leases of land, so as to eliminate
inconsistency with the general guidance on lease
classification. As a result, leases of land should be classified
as either finance or operating lease using the general
principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset to the lessee. Prior to the amendment,
land interest which title is not expected to pass to the
Organization by the end of the lease term was classified as
operating lease under “Leasehold land™, and amortized over
the lease term.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

* HKAS 17 (Amendment) has been applied retrospectively for

the Organization's annual periods beginning 1 April 2010 in
accordance with the effective date and transitional provisions
of the amendment. The Organization has reassessed the
classification of unexpired leasehold land as at 1 April 2010
on the basis of information existing at the inception of those
leases, and recognized the leasehold land in Hong Kong as
finance lease retrospectively. As a result of the
reassessment, the Organization has reclassified leasehold
land from operating lease to finance lease. The land interest
of the Organization that is held for own use is accounted for
as property, plant and equipment and is depreciated from the
land interest available for its intended use over the shorter of
the useful live of the asset and the lease term.

The retrospective effects of the adoption of this amendment
are as below:

31 March 31 March 1 April

2011 2010 2009

Decrease in (637,632) (655,262) (672,892)
leasehold land

Increase in 637,632 655,262 672,892

property, plant

and equipment

New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
HKFRS that are not yet effective have not been early adopted
by the Organization

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing HKFRS (collectively, the “ Amendments ) have
been published that are mandatory for Organization's
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2011. Some
of the Amendments are relevant and applicable to the
Organization; however, they have not been early adopted in
these financial statements. The Organization has
commenced, but not yet completed, an assessment of the
impact of the applicable Amendments on its result of
operations and financial position. The Director of Marketing
is of the view that the impact on the financial statements will
not be significant other than certain additional disclosures.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the
Organization are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Organization operates
(“the functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Organization's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions and valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized
in the statement of comprehensive income.

Leasehold land

In prior year, leasehold land represented prepaid operating
lease payments and was amortized on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease, or when there was impairment,
the impairment was expensed in the statement of
comprehensive income. Upon the adoption of HKAS 17
(Amendment) as stated in note 2.1(a) above, the leasehold
land is reclassified under “Property, plant and equipment”
(note 2.4).

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices and market
buildings. Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Organization and that cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortization from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortization on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Leasehold land
classified as
finance lease

Over the unexpired period of
the lease

Leasehold Shorter of the lease period and
improvements the useful lives of 10 years
Buildings

- Cheung Sha

Wan 20 years

- Buildings at depots 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and
computer equipment 5 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Machinery and others 5 years
The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.5).

46



24

2.5

2.6

2.7

HREBER
(ERAGHBS - FrHaSEREY)

B BRI

HESHBORNE (%)
Ik - W KR ()

2 i 1 IR T Sk SRR T L 22 AR S A
AROWETRA T HAS ) PR -

TR BRI

SHEE - HA B SRR iR g
ARESEEE MG MIRF R IRAEE T TARRY - WUEIE 1R
R T B L FE AT el < B o AR AR - WK
(] <5 B E R AN MBI B 0 6 AR o A i
WA LB R R HE o FRFTAEIRAER - BRI T
73 ik BB < B8 (R < 2 4 BT ) I I A S R A
T - CEIBENIEMBEE - (EEE®SEM
YIRS A5 AT DA I TR -

78

{7 IR A B AT B BUFHE R B B ARE TR » 1%
ATEMEEEE - U HIRA S AR - s
BRI A58 B SRR h A 8 - Wod
MBI EEA -

MERE

AN FLRA T SRS K R MR -
TP AM B EEC B - & B G {ERI A HERR R
EEM RN -

Bk SEBCGK R A & € ST B A3k LA 6
M EREIERT M BEE - hEHE a8
FERENE RN » (B4 211 0 S5 H s 12
EA%E > Mo BRIERENE & - SR BRI
EEEAMESTE THEREEER, - "HY
K HAEYEK @3 ME A i AR
THFa ) K T B RIS EY) ) B -

24

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized
within ¢ Other expenditure * in the statement of
comprehensive income.

2.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.6

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost, determined using the first-in first-out method,
mainly comprises invoiced cost. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.7 Financial assets

The Organization classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Organization's loans and receivables comprise “ VMO
Loans”, “trade and other receivables”, “bank deposits with
maturities of more than three months and within one year”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the balance sheet.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

The Organization assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment testing of
trade receivables is described in note 2.9.

Loans

Loans are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of loans is established when there is objective
evidence that the Organization will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the loans.
The amount of the provision for impairment is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. '
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the
Organization will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The amount of provision is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use
of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

2.11

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and bank
deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

Employee benefits
Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by the employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognized until the time of leave.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement plan obligations

The Organization operates a defined benefit plan, a defined
contribution plan and a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong, the assets of which are held
in separate trustee-administered funds. All three retirement
plans are funded by payments from employees and by the
Organization. For the defined benefit plan, payments are
made after taking into account the recommendations of
independent qualified actuary.

The Organization's contributions to the defined contribution
plan and MPF scheme are based on a certain percentage of
the employees’ income. The Organization's contributions to
both the defined contribution plan and the MPF scheme are
expensed as incurred.

The Organization's contributions to the defined contribution
plan are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employces who leave the defined contribution plan prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement plan obligations (Continued)

For the defined benefit plan, it defines an amount of benefit
that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age and years of
services. The asset recognized in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit plan is the fair value of plan assets
less the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of each reporting period, together with adjustments for
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be
paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related liability. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are not recognized unless the cumulative
unrecognized gain or loss at the end of the previous reporting
of 10 percent of the present value of the estimated defined ber
obligation and the fair value of the plan assets. In these
circumstances the excess is charged or credited to the stateme
of comprehensive income over the average expected remainin
working lives of the employees participating in the plan. Past
service costs are charged immediately to the statement of
comprehensive income, unless the changes are conditional on
employees remaining in service for a specified period of time
(the “vesting period”). In this case, the past service costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Provision for long service payments

The Organization recognizes provision for long service
payments to its employees in accordance with the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) upon the termination of
the employment, or retirement when the employees fulfil
certain conditions and the termination meets the required
circumstances. The provision is calculated based on the long
service payments that are required to be made to the
employees by the Organization in respect of their services up
to the year-end date as reduced by certain benefits arising
from the Organization's retirement plans.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods and services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers and service providers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Organization has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Organization's activities. Revenue
is recognized as follows:

Commission income relating to the provision of services to
the vegetable sellers is recognized based on the price of the
vegetable transactions concluded in the Organization's
market on an accruals basis, and is reduced by rebates which
are recognized at a rate of 3.5% based on the price of the
same vegetable transactions.

Sales of vegetables is recognized upon delivery of vegetables
to the customer, who has accepted the vegetables and
collectibility of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Commission income relating to the sales of premium
vegetables is recognized when the services are rendered.

Interest income on bank deposits and VMO Loans is
recognized on a time proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

FarmFest income, other income and other operating income
are recognized on an accruals basis.

VMO Loan Fund and VMO Agricultural Development
Fund (“Funds”)

The VMO Loan Fund was set up for making loans to farmers
for productive purposes.

The VMO Agricultural Development Fund was set up for
promoting local agriculture.

The income and expenditure relating to these Funds are
directly dealt with in the statement of comprehensive
income. Any net surplus or deficit relating to these Funds is
transferred from/to VMO General Fund to/from the
respective Funds.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

Financial and fund risks management

Financial risk factors

The Organization's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The
Organization's overall risk management procedures focus on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Organization's
financial performance.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises where future commercial
transactions and recognized assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the Organization's
functional currency. In the opinion of the Director of
Marketing, the Organization has minimal exposure to the
foreign exchange risk as the transactions are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and no sensitivity
analysis is performed accordingly.

Credit risk

The Organization has policies in place for the control and
monitoring of its credit risk. The credit risk of the
Organization is primarily attributable to the VMO Loans,
trade and other receivables and deposits and balances placed
with banks.

In respect of VMO Loans, individual evaluations are
performed on all borrowers. For each loan granting, the
Organization has policy to assess the eligibility of the
granting to farmers. Besides, the Organization will make
specific provision for those balances which cannot be
recovered.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(Al amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial and fund risks management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, which are arisen
from the sales of vegetables and the commission receivables
from credit customers, the Organization has policies in place
to ensure they are with appropriate credit history and to limit
the amount of credit exposure to credit customers so as to
minimise credit risk resulting from counterparties default.
The Organization will also make specific provision for those
balances which cannot be recovered. The Organization does
not obtain collateral from credit customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are reputable and creditworthy banks.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.
In the opinion of the Director of Marketing, the
Organization's overall credit risk is considered to be low.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient bank deposits and bank balances. In the opinion of
the Director of Marketing, the Organization does not have
any significant liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Organization's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

As at 31 March 2011, the maturity analysis of the financial
liabilities is as follows:

2011 2010
Less than one
Trade and other payables
(note 15) 12,835,112 12,880,264
Vegetable buyers' deposits 5,765,314 5,570,288
18.600.426 18,450,552
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial and fund risks management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

Other than the bank balances and VMO Loans, the
Organization has no significant interest-bearing assets or
liabilities. The Organization's cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk is primarily arisen from bank deposits.

As at 31 March 2011, if interest rates on the bank deposits
had been 30 basis points (2010: 50 basis points) higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, deficit for the year
would have been $1,112,000 (2010: $1,887,000)
lower/higher, as a result of higher/lower interest income on
the bank deposits.

Fund risk management

The Organization's objectives when managing funds are to
safeguard the Organization's ability to continue as a going
concern and to have sufficient funding for future operation.
The Organization's overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The total funds of the Organization comprises VMO General
Fund, VMO Loan Fund, VMO Agricultural Development
Fund and funds provided from external sources for capital
expenditure.

Fair value estimation

Fair value measurement by level of hierarchy is not disclosed
as the Organization has no financial instruments that are
measured on the three-level hierarchy basis in the balance
sheet.

The carrying value less impairment provision of loans and
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Organization for similar financial
instruments.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

The Organization makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below.

Defined benefit plan

This applies where the Organization's accounting policy is to
recognize any actuarial gains or losses over the average
remaining working lives of employees through the statement
of comprehensive income.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation depends
on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used
in determining the net cost/(income) for defined benefit plan
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions
will impact the carrying amount of defined benefit
obligation.

The actuary, HSBC Life (International) Limited, determines
the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is
the interest rate that should be used to determine the present
value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be
required to settle the defined benefit obligation. In
determining the appropriate discount rate, the actuary
considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating
the terms of the related defined benefit liability.

Other key assumptions for defined benefit obligation are
based in part on current market conditions. Additional
information is disclosed in note 17(g).

Estimated impairment of VMO Loans

The Organization makes provision for impairment of VMO
Loans based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
VMO Loans. Provisions are applied to VMO Loans where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of impairment of
VMO Loans requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying value of
VMO Loans and impairment of VMO Loans is recognized in
the year in which such estimates have been changed.
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VEGETABLE MARKETING ORGANIZATION
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Organization's management determines the estimated
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment. These
estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions.

Management will increase the depreciation charges where

useful lives are less than the previously estimated lives, or
will write-off obsolete assets that have been abandoned.

Leasehold Iand

The net book value of the Organization's leasehold land is
analysed as follows:

As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
(restated) (restated)
In Hong Kong
held on:
Leases of
between 10 to - - -
50 years
2011 2010
(restated)
At 1 April, as previously 655,262 672,892
reported
Effect of adoption of HKAS
17 (Amendment) (note (655,262) (672,892)
2.1(a))
At 1 April, as restated and at
31 March - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W% - BRI Property, plant and equipment

RZRBAEMNE —HAt 1 April 2009

IR > AT Cost, as previously reported

BT IO HEHIER 1 73R (B OME T (R 2.1(2))
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 (Amendment) (note 2.1(a))
RAS » I Cost, as restated

BLITRT - WINPT Accumulated depreciation, as previously reported

IR IR 1 73RS ORI B (ME3E 2.1(2))
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 (Amendment) (note 2.1(a))

FAHTE #ETAk Accumulated depreciation, as restated

NRIATITHIT » €T Net book amount, as restated

TS B2
Markets and depots

IRAE R R RIS (WAL 8)
VMO Agricultural Development Fund  (note 8)

TR - Bt

BRI %I~ 4t
Furniture, B
1-Hb 57 fixtures ISR billscdlre Furniture,
pilj== and HLGE 4t Leasehold fixtures
Land and computer Motor Machinery NG improve- and computer 7Nat &t
buildings equipment vehicles and others Subtotal ments equipment Subtotal Total
2,953,430 21,828,167 6,473,563 51,748 31,306,908 4,081,083 6,012,768 10,093,851 41,400,759
1,492,700 1,492,700 - - 1,492,700
4,446,130 21,828,167 6,473, 563 51,748 32,799,608 4,081,083 6,012,768 10,093,851 42,893,459
(2,953,430) (13,909,736) (4,448,807) (30,564) (21,342,537) (892,828) (1,163,641) (2,056,469)  (23,399,006)
(819,808) (819,808) - - - (819,808)
(3,773,238) (13,909,736) (4,448,807) (30,564) (22,162,345) (892,828) (1,163,641) (2,056,469) (24,218,814)
672,892 7,918,431 2,024,756 21,184 10,637.263 3,188.255 4.849.127 8,037,382 18,674,645
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6 WI¥E - B M# (W) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

e

SOSRERELRORRIL G (H1TE 8)
Markets and depots VMO Agricultural Development Fund  (note 8)
AL - B
BT R - s
Furniture, BeAERE i
fixtures 308 R L Furniture,
=g and 1liig Hitn Leasehold fixtures
Land and computer Motor Machinery 7N improve- and computer IN Enls
buildings equipment vehicles and others Subtotal ments equipment Subtotal Total
BE-E—BE=F=1+—H L4 Year ended 31 March 2010
WIMTATEMA > 40T Opening net book amount, as previously reported - 7,918,431 2,024,756 21,184 9,964,371 3,188,255 4,849,127 8,037,382 18,001,753
RENB U HELIZR | TER(ISTORYIZE (WL 2.1(a))
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 (Amendment) (note 2.1(a)) 672,892 = = = 672,892 - = 2 672,892
AT AT + #TTE Opening net book amount, as restated 672,892 7,918,431 2,024,756 21,184 10,637,263 3,188,255 4,849,127 8,037,382 18,674,645
7% Additions - 1,912,110 1,045,278 - 2,957,388 45,000 239,450 284,450 3,241,838
IR (%Ek 26(b)) Disposals {Note 26{b)) - (58,536) (7.200) (7.360) (73,006) - (4,810) (4.810) (77,906)
- [ 4 Cost - (329,276) (892,760) (12,575) (1,234,611) - (36,900) (36,900) (1,271,511)
- WA Acc lated depreciation - 270.740 885,560 5215 1,161,515 - 32,090 32,090 1,193,605
H74§ Depreciation {17,630) 2.230,687) (965,192) (5,682) (3.215,191) {412,609) (617,084) (1,029,693) (4,248 884)
SUIRIRRIATYRIT » #RTUL Closing net book amount, as restated 655,262 7.541,318 2,097,642 8,142 10,302,364 2,820,646 4466683 - 7,287,329 17,589,693
A-®|—®&E=F=—+—H At31 March 2010
A > L[ Cost, as previously reported 2,953,430 23,411,001 6,626,081 39,173 33,029,685 4,126,083 6,215,318 10,341,401 43,371,086
SRANTTHE T U 1 T3 (SO (M 2 1(a))
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 (Amendment) (note 2,1(a)) 1,492,700 - - - 1,492,700 - - - 1,492,700
A #EITLM Cost, as restated 4,446,130 23,411,001 6,626,081 39,173 34,522,385 4,126,083 6,215,318 10,341,401 44,863,786
- . 3 0 3,382 1,305,437

BT Accumulated depreciation, as previously reported (2,953.430) (15,869,683) (4,528,439) GLo3n (23.382,583) ( 37) (1,748,635) (3,054,072) (26,436,655)
RANEF R FBRIZI TSSO/ R (i 2.1(a))
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 (Amendment) (note 2.1(a)) (837,438) (837,438)

. E = . E P (837,438)
AT AT Accumulated depreciation, as restated (3,790,868) (15,869,683) (4,528,439) (31,031) (24,220,021) (1,305,437) (1,748,635) (3,054,072) (27,274,093)
WerrFIHin » %Lt Net book amount, as restated 655.262 7.541318 2,097.642 8.142 10.302.364 2.820.646 4.466.683 7.287.329 17.589.693
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6 P - IR REE () Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2T BEASH R A L (HTRE 8)
Markets and depots VMO Agricultural Development Fund (note 8)
E3= "t
B TR - 4t
Furniture, - i
fixtures BRI, i & Furniture,
i and T A Leasehold fixtures
Land and computer Motor Machinery INE Improve- and computer /Nt &al
buildings equipment vehicles and others Subtotal ments equipment Subtotal Total
BE—BR—F=A=1—HIL4E Year ended 31 March 2011
HA%IIE 7R E Opening net book amount, as previously reported 7,541,318 2,097,642 8,142 9,647,102 2,820,646 4,466,683 7,287,329 16,934,431
AR RUZE 7RSO R B (HERE 2.1(a))
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 (Amendment) (note 2.1(a)) Os87262 - 655,262 - - - 655,262
HHPIHRTIT ¥R » 48030 'Opening net book amount, as restated 655,262 7,541,318 2,097,642 8,142 10,302,364 2,820,646 4,466,683 7,287,329 17,589,693
7% Additions - 659,877 262,675 3,540 926,092 - 88,285 88,285 1,014,377
Mg (H)2E 26(b)) Disposals (Note 26(b)) - (56,262) - = (56,262) - (10,982) (10,982) (67,244)
- |4 Cost - (231,551) - (1,550) (233,101) - (26,530) (26,530) (259,631)
- YT % Accumulated depreciation - 175,289 - 1,550 176.839 - 15,548 15,548 192,387
1% Depreciation (17,630)  (2,020,086) (727,842) (6,390)  (2,771,948) (412,608) (619,941) (1,032,549)  (3,804,497)
IR 7 Closing net book amount 637,632 6,124,847 1,632,475 5,292 8,400,246 2,408,038 3,924,045 6,332,083 14,732,329
RZB——EF=F=+—H At31 March 2011
J A Cost 4,446,130 23,839,327 6,388,756 41,163 35215,376 4,126,083 6,277,073 10,403,156 45,618,532
ZE4F71% Accumulated depreciation (3,808,498)  (17,714,480)  (5,256,281) (35,871) (26,815,130)  (1,718,045) (2,353,028) (4,071,073)  (30,886,203)
HE TR Net book amount 637,632 6,124,847 1,632,475 5,292 8,400,246 2,408,038 3,924,045 6,332,083 14,732,329

L2, 771,948 6 T B 1,032, 549HETO(T 24 445 © 3,219, 19THE T B 1,029,693 UETT )/ I EM B /STOREAS S0 B A AR T TGk - SRS e RS i) -
Depreciation expenses of $2,771,948 and $1,032,549 (2010: $3,219,191 and $1,029,693) have been charged in the operating expenditure and net deficit from other activities - VMO Agricultural Development Fund respectively on Appendix ¢
e R M FAT A HS 10 SO S rh IR AT FHI T 4T -

The land and buildings are located in Hong Kong at medium-term lease between 10 to 50 years. 61
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P BRI EE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

HERABREHKIES VMO Loan Fund

(a) EEAEF Balance Sheet

IS R R SR T B O TE A G RO 8 A B AR

The VMO Loan Fund is represented by the following assets which have been included in the assets of the Organization in the balance sheet on

Appendix 5 :)

WE ASSETS

FEVIBIREE Non-current assets
}lhiﬁﬁﬁgﬁ VMO Loans
ERE# Loans to farmers
FEUWCHE. Interest receivable

WL © BRI I SR B IR

Less: Provision for impairment of VMO Loans

W 4H1TH REHE
Less: Accumulated amortization at 1 April
BRICHUE R SR R/ (i S i 8

Premium/(discount) on amortization of VMO Loans

3H31H Ra s

Accumulated amortization at 31 March

PR R RN - ¥R VMO Loans - net
B PRENES Less: current portion

FEFENE 43 Non-current portion

B EE Current assets

B 28 R S 2 B4y Current portion of VMO Loans
HAhFEIKGEK Other receivables

EE3E A i E R R RT Tk

Bank deposits with maturities of more than three months and
within one year

& BRI EY) Cash and cash equivalents

FEEEE Total assets

E& FUNDS

AEIEFHEEHERRER e

Capital account transferred from VMO General Fund

4H THIRERI

Accumulated surplus at | April

AEEBHGEARENER —RES
Net surplus for the year transferred from VMO General Fund

3 H 31 HEfF&eR
Accumulated surplus at 31 March

WHES Total funds

&{& LIABILITIES
il e & & Current and total liabilities

SR & {8 Total funds and liabilities

fyat:
Note

22

12

138322
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2011 2010
1,636,790 1,688,290
77,040 71,593
1,703,830 1,759,883
(476,026) (576,481)
1,237,804 1,183,402
(101,114) (47,837)
37,585 (53.277)
(63,529) (101,114)
1,174,275 1,082,288
(1,083,566) (1,082,288)
90,709 .
1,083,566 1,082,288
9,296 3,692
8,550,000 9,350,000
2,002,701 1,086,995
11,645,563 11,522,975
11,736,272 11,522,975
2,608,000 2,608,000
8,914,975 8,876,326
213,297 38,649
9,128,272 8,914,975
11,736,272 11,522,975
11,736,272 11,522,975
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S HFRARHTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

DR B R ERES (%) VMO Loan Fund (Continued)

(b) FZRAEEEFK VMO Loans

M ERERES R TERRRRBOAERIR A -

The VMO Loan Fund was set up for making loans to farmers for productive purposes.

RFREEER AR ERE S, -

The Organization does not hold any collateral over the VMO Loans.

RIEF——HEZHEA—H - TR E R Ek476,0268ET( T — 34 576,48 1 #ETT) CARIRE R 2 BFL IS - FERMUE IR SaKEIaR Tl
As at 31 March 2011, VMO Loans of $476,026 (2010: $576,481) were impaired and full provisions have been made. The remaining balances of
VMO Loans were not past due.

HRAHIE i SR B BT

Movements on provision for impairment of VMO Loans are as follows:

Bzt 2011 2010
Note
4H1H At 1 April 576,481 614,928
kRO a0 IR:
Credited to the statement of comprehensive income
- WEIB(HEE] -Write-back of provision for impairment 22 (100,455) (38,447)
R3H3IH At 31 March 476,026 576,481

HEBERBTRUE B SRS R SO A DA SR S U R AR B IR B B S P R R -
The creation and release of provisions for impaired VMO Loans have been included in the net surplus from VMO Loan Fund in the statement of
comprehensive income.

eSS AN ERERNSHABARBEAFMEEEHAIRRE - R-F——FRF-FE-A=T—H - BERER SRR
{EEEATER » WLIETE AL -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying values of the VMO Loans. The carrying values of VMO Loans approximate their
fair values at 31 March 2011 and 2010 and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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8

TR B RERETRESE VMO Agricultural Development Fund

TYMRBAR B IR R R I F P N B (A AR TE A A (R (T8 T0) MY # 28 B B FEIRTE A

The VMO Agricultural Development Fund is represented by the following assets and liabilities which have been included in the assets

and liabilities of the Organization in the balance sheet on Appendix 5:

EE ASSETS

JEFBIE#E Non-current assets
s« HeER R 34 0H Property, plant and equipment

FiBZEE Current assets

f#E Inventories

B 5 R HAREIZR Trade and other receivables

A3 E H RN B EARSRIT

Bank deposits with maturities of more than three months and
within one year

REFIRE%(EY) Cash and cash equivalents

HEEPE Total assets

& FUNDS

R&EHBFE Capital account

P41 At1 April

MR R — A% 3E 4 Transfer from VMO General Fund

A3 H31H At 31 March

48 1 HE{##58Y Accumulated deficit at 1 April

PN RS S ONE RS ST e S5
Net deficit for the year transferred to VMO General Fund
3H31BEEERE Accumulated deficit at 31 March

FHESE Total funds

% LIABILITIES

JEWBIE{E Non-current liabilities
EHNEF5E:1%0# Provision for long service payments

FrEIE ] Current liabilities
HAthfERTEL Other payables

B & Total liabilities

WE S A& Total funds and liabilities

frraE 2011 2010
Note

6 6,332,083 7,287,329

93,310 77,200

1,345,291 1,000,044

11 180,450,000 162,250,000

12 6,745,952 51,898

188,634,553 163,379,142

194,966,636 170,666,471

250,000,000 190,000,000

13 50,000,000 60,000,000

300,000,000

250,000,000

(80,148,017)

(55,581,701)

13&21 (26,145,095) (24,566,316)
(106,293,112) (80,148,017)
193,706,888 169,851,983
16 29,053 .
1,230,695 814,488
1,259,748 814,488
194,966,636 170,666,471

BRI R B RESNBO L AR R MRS RN IR SR - R EGEE] - AR R E RS
i~ TR RS ARG - FIARE R A S HE A (e -
The VMO Agricultural Development Fund was set up for promoting local agriculture through financing or subsidizing various
agricultural research and development projects, agricultural land rehabilitation scheme, construction and improvement of communal
agricultural facilities, vocational training for farmers and agricultural workers, exhibitions and other publicity means to promote

agriculture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9

10

SMTESE

Financial instruments by category

RERATER CEERELT

The Organization's financial instruments include the following:

MBRE - RS BEEH

Financial assets - loans and receivables

BRI B B EFK VMO Loans

g 2 By HoAth E K3k Trade and other receivables

3 H i AR T

Bank deposits with maturities of more than
three months and within one year

4 B IR 2{8Y) Cash and cash equivalents

MBS - K& SR aRss
Financial liabilities - other financial
liabilities at amortized cost

B 5 B HAWFE(} 2k Trade and other payables
BRZRIR B A4 Vegetable buyers® deposits

B 5 R HEA K

Trade and other receivables

H S HENE Trade receivables
B B RGO B

Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables

5 EWER ¥l Trade receivable, net
JREMCFR 27 Interest receivables
HAthFE K Other receivables

A% 4 B Financial assets

TEfEUHE Prepayments

65

i
Note

10

12

2011 2010
1,174,275 1,082,288
7,892,641 7,626,839

359,990,000 376,350,000
28,823,965 17,347,117
397,880,881 402,406,244
12,835,112 12,880,264
5,765,314 5,570,288
18,600,426 18,450,552

2011 2010

6,761,896 6,682,397

(100,000) 3
6,661,896 6,682,397
570,053 312,623
660,692 631,819
7,892,641 7,626,839
1,250,059 988,091
9,142,700 8,614,930
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Lyt e
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 B 53 R HAM G

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

BB ——FZAZ4—0 - EHMIGR6T033SHTT(E—FF * 665,475HE70)ETMIHAN HEE - HEFEW RS ERLR

BTG SABIIED  MARMF A A S ETENG - &2 BRGIRE I TIT

As at 31 March 2011, trade receivables of $670,335 (2010: $665,475) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of

independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The Organization does not hold any collateral over these balances and

the ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

EIMERTRE

Past due but not impaired
30H K LAT Up to 30 days
31FE60H 31 to 60 days
61ZE90H 61 to 90 days
90H A _E Over 90 days

2011

417376
68,392
75,300

109,267

670,335

2010

616,825
5,350
7,032

36,268

665,475

Mo ——EZASH—H - EBEEG00.000# T —F—FE L fOECaCER - RoF-——F =A==+ —BHHREUA

S —E

E5100,0004570( Z B — B4 © 5) - BB R KGR T K AR ARSI & - 35 LRI A0 T -

As of 31 March 2011, trade receivables of $100,000 (2010: Nil) were impaired and provided for. The amount of the provision was $100,000
as of 31 March 2011 (2010: Nil). The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers, which are in unexpectedly difficult

economic situations. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

2011 2010
—ERLE
Over ] year 100,000 -
H 5 BN B =Bl T
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2011 2010
4H1H At 1 April B i
R I R (L EE26(2))
Provision for receivables impairment (note 26(a)) 100,000 -
A3H31H At 31 March 100,000 -

ST R e K T B A B S AT E AT R AR Cr R R A ST P - 3 TRIIRAERUTER B I B IHRORE (7L

2

o

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in ‘Other expenditure’ in the statement of comprehensive
statement on Appendix 6. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off, when there is no expectation of recovering

additional cash.

B2 5 BCHAWEWGR P AW A B 2 TR B E E -
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
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10

11

12

BB RHEABLER 30

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

eSS A - EERBNRERBIREE DREERIGIIREE < R -B—-—FR-F-FF=A =t HEZRIAMEL

HORR T B LN 7T i A TS (B B AT RS B A3

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The carry values
of trade and other receivables approximate their fair values at 31 March 2011 and 2010 and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

HEE3ME A T LE N EIRRTERK

Bank deposits with maturities of more than three months and within one year
Fest
Note

RIS R REE VMO General Fund

RIS E RS VMO Loan Fund 7

BRI S ER EmRETS RS VMO Agricultural Development Fund

(ZE M= E S A% Maximum exposure to credit risk

oo

T AR IEA T RS BT

The carrying values of bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

BHERFHE%MEY Cash and cash equivalents
Fat:
Note

BB R — %34 VMO General Fund
ST R EETEIR 4 Cash at banks and in hand
3@ B LI EHARSRTTEEk Bank deposits with maturities of
three months or less

PR S R B4 VMO Loan Fund
#1784 Cash at banks and in hand

3ME H AR ZEIEARYER TR Bank deposits with maturities of
three months or less

PGB R AT RS VMO Agricultural Development Fund
SRITRETFIA4E Cash at banks and in hand
3{E H LA EIHARUERTT 73X Bank deposits with maturities of three
months or less

4821 Total

EERRRE S ERENE Maximum exposure to credit risk

H& B &S aRE DAL -

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong kong dollars.
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2011 2010
170,990,000 204,750,000
8,550,000 9,350,000
180,450,000 162,250,000
359,990,000 376,350,000
2011 2010
17,275,312 16,208,224
2,800,000 -
20,075,312 16,208,224
252,701 86,995
1,750,000 1,000,000
2,002,701 1,086,995
545,952 51,898
6,200,000 -
6,745,952 51,898
28,823,965 17,347,117
27,208,632 15,932,140
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 R BRE—IE4S VMO General fund

74 H1H At April

REEFEGAIHE%E Deficit for the year

A B A B B 5 L4 Transferred to VMO Loan Fund
HEHBRME R ER RS

Transferred from VMO Agricultutal Development Fund
AR B R RERRES AR Transferred to

capital account of VMO Agricultural Development Fund

3 H 31 H At31 March

14 SEREBIERERASH

Funds provided from external sources for capital expenditure

SRR R BT M5
Colonial Development Welfare Fund Grants
—AT#(D994 - A SRS

Scheme D994-Village agricultural depots

F1#ID1066 - [ E il
Scheme D1066-Purchase of lorries

— i 1#ID5250 - BRI T
Scheme D5250-Cheung Sha Wan Vegetable Market

R4HTHE 3H31H At 1 April and 31 March

15 B RHAMBENEX Trade and other payables

& 5y IE(TER Trade payables

HoA1 3K Other payables

$%4; Deposits

BA75 & {# Financial liabilities

= 2 M Provision for unused annual leave

68

it
Note

Accumulated surplus

2011

214,804,461

(5,594,897)

(213,297)
26,145,095

(50,000,000)

2010

256,690,568
(6,413,774)
(38,649)

24,566,316

(60,000,000)

185,141,362

214,804,461

2011 2010
144,000 144,000
150,000 150,000

1,470,104 1,470,104
1,764,104 1,764,104
2011 2010
8,223,967 8,386,082
3,616,632 3,769,682
994,513 724,500
12,835,112 12,880,264
1,100,163 1,107,770
13,935,275 13,988,034
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15 YE REMENE () Trade and other payables (Continued)

Wik 2011 2010
Note
(2) RFAHFBHEEREILT

Movements on provision for unused annual leave are as follows:

R4 8 1H At April 1,107,770 1,119,599

TEAr e B REIR:

Credited to the statement of comprehensive income

- HHfEM] Write-back of provision 19 (7,607) (11,829)

3 331 H At 31 March 1,100,163 1,107,770

(b) RoF——FRE B -FEZH=1—H » BE AR BRI AT E AN R R AT RS AL
The carrying values of trade and other payables approximate their fair values at 31 March 2011 and 2010
and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

16  BHARHE&HE Provision for long service payments

[z 2011 2010
Note
4 31 BiE{E at 1 April 7,947,330 9,698,573
R H Payments for the year (545,217) (645,755)
7,402,113 9,052,818
RSN (B H O
Additional / (write-back of) provision for the year
—f# %4 General Fund 19(a) 159,694 (1,105,488)
BRI S Agricultural Development Fund 19(b) 29,053 -
3 H 31 H At 31 March 7,590,860 7,947,330
Bk FEENER4> Less: Current portion (531,863) (283,237)
FEFRENEBS> Non-current portion 7,058,997 7,664,093
17 FUEBFISHBIREE Assets under defined benefit plan
FfirEt: 2011 2010
Note
HEAMERNEE:
Balance sheet assets for:
- SLEEFEHE| Defined benefit plan (a) 5,450,000 4,112,000
TERFERaER ECHR)Y T8
Statement of comprehensive income
(credit)/charge for:
- RELEFZTE] Defined benefit plan (b) (1,338,000) 162,000

AUEAO T E FRRF TR — ERRE T R G T - T RE RS R LN ARV » PRI
(SHESRHE - ANEN T B EEE R SESR I LA AT SRR - LUT RS RIRHE S A SRR
(REVEIRARIR % ——FE = A =+ HE T Em R -

The Organization's defined benefit plan is a final salary defined benefit plan. The assets of the funded plan are held
independently of the Organization's assets in separate trustee administered funds. The Organization's major plan is
valued by a qualified actuary annually using the project unit cost method. The following details are based on the
valuation as at 31 March 2011 carried out by HSBC Life (International) Limited.
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17 FLEBFIGHBFZEH) Assets under defined benefit plan (Continued)

(a) CNEEAARMEZRNEEE TARE

(b)

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are determined as follows:

f&E 2011 2010
Note
FOEREAEERE (d) (26,135,000) (25,917,000)
Present value of defined benefit obligations
FIHEIEENAPE (c) 36,921,000 34,381,000
Fair value of plan assets
10,786,000 8,464,000
RMERDRE R (5,336,000) (4,352,000)
Unrecognized actuarial gains
HEER 5,450,000 4,112,000
Asset in the balance sheet
EHMBUR G AR R RERRRYBASE -
The amounts recognized in the statement of comprehensive income are as follows:
Fat 2011 2010
Note
BB AS Current service cost 957,000 1,083,000
FE A Interest cost 613,000 501,000
FTHIE FERYTHET M Expected return on plan assets (2,394,000) (1,700,000)
AE R RS EE (131,000) 687,000
Net actuarial (gains) / losses recognized during the year
TR T 6,000 6,000
Administrative cost deducted from contributions
BTtk (389,000) (415,000)
Employees' contributions received
CRFEE B L B HARERIA 19(a) (1,338,000) 162,000
Included in employee benefit expenditure
FHEIEE < BREEREBET] 2,897,000850( ~F—FF © Ffll 10,909,00045T) «
The actual return on plan assets was a gain of $2,897,000 (2010: gain of $10,909,000).
(¢) FEAEIBIE BN AT(ERFHIT:
The movement in the fair value of plan assets for the year is as follows:
2011 2010
R4H1H At 1 April 34,381,000 25,109,000
SHEIEERYTEIEEE Expected return on plan assets 2,394,000 1,700,000
{L3X¥5+4E Net contributions 383,000 409,000
L 5 %] Benefits paid (740,000) (2,046,000)
SHHIEERE LS Actuarial gains on plan assets 503,000 9,209,000
3H31H At 31 March 36,921,000 34,381,000
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17 FEEFETBIAEREG) Assets under defined benefit plan (Continued)

(d) ARERFUE BRI EARERE0T

The movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations over the year is as follows:

B4H18 At 1 April

AN EA Current service cost

FI| S A Interest cost

ET#E#I] Benefits paid

W ERERIGAS Actuarial gains due to experience
YA R EESE ()

Actuarial losses/(gains) due to assumption changes

A3 HA31H At 31 March

(e) A7 AMRNFTHET R E PRV BEIIT ¢

Movement in the net asset recognized in the balance sheet is as follows:

bfEt:
Note

W4H1H At April
ARG IS ZEHERR IS/ G )

Income / (expense) recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income

#A3H31H At 31 March

() Tr&EAERNEEIFTRA WEEHRAT:

The plan assets at the balance sheet date are held in the following forms:

H#1% Equities
&% Bonds
HE# 1 H Money instruments

() TRAIMIEERERBEAOT

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows :

I Discount rate
A AR TRl
Expected rate of return on plan assets

ARAH M FHPERHR

Expected rate of future salary increases
FHTEIRER T TIFERIE)

Average expected remaining working lives (years)
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2011 2010
25,917,000 28,494,000
613,000 1,083,000
957,000 501,000
(740,000) (2,046,000)
(893,000) (1,190,000)
281,000 (925,000)
26,135,000 25,917,000
2011 2010
4,112,000 4,274,000
1,338,000 (162,000)
5,450,000 4,112,000

2011 2010
% %
81 82
14 14
5 4

100 100

2011 2010
% %

22 24

8.0 7.0

4.0 4.0
6 7
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18 ME# ¥4 % %03k Netincome on sales of premium vegetables

AEEHEFEHREOURIERNLT:

The income and expenditure on the sales of premium vegetables for the year are as follows:

¥ &4 & Net sales
& % # %44 & Sales of premium vegetables
W 4B 3 Less: Sales discounts

84 | A& : Cost of inventories sold:
#94774 & Opening inventories
& Purchases
#A K4 % Closing inventories

& £4| Gross profit

18 ik 2 Commission income

HiE2 % % Direct operating expenses
45 % =115 Rebates
4% % 1M 4 Sale commission
#H4&%& M Sundry expenses

AREFEFU A Netincome for the year

2011 2010
37,551,581 35,378,976
(271,921) (307,651)
37,279,660 35,071,325
207,133 115,927
29,405,634 27,168,910
(162,169) (207,133)
29,450,598 27,077,704
7,829,062 7,993,621
1,396,688 1,064,738
(177,298) (236,609)
(35,698) (20,264)
(13,815) a
(226,811) (256,873)
8,998,939 8,801,486

PAESBE R AT BIBFE52,629,52 19U (ZF—F4F © 2,115,685480)
The above cost of inventories sold includes inventory written-off of $2,629,521 (2010: $2,115,685).
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19 AL ARHEMIZA Employee benefit expenditure

() AHERER—BREALNGALHERAMBA S 0T
Employee benefit expenditure in the VMO General Fund is analysed as below:

Mt 2011 2010
Note
# % Salaries and wages 35,164,927 35,289,198
g T 8t & Staff bonuses 7,661 17,451
A ERZHEBHBEHD 15 (7,607) (11,829)
Write-back of provision for unused annual leave -
FINRAS AR R /(138 10) 16 159,694 (1,105,488)
Additional/(write-back of) provision for long service payments
B 4k38#] ;. A Retirement benefit costs
- RO BB M AR 1,624,133 1,607,311
defined contribution plan and MPF Scheme
- R 2 48 #) 31 & defined benefit plan 17(b) (1,338,000) 162,000
35,610,808 35,958,643

(b) BR B THIECHE N HAMARFIL,974,24 1 T(—F—F4 © 9,484,67T08T0) EFEHAFE2 15
BRR R R IR RS N -
In addition to the above, employee benefit expenditure amounting to $9,974,241 (2010: $9,484,670) as listed
below has been included in certain expenditure items in the VMO Agricultural Development Fund in note 21.

W&t 2011 2010
Note
#5 % Salaries and wages 9,514,429 9,037,718
£ #A BB A5 & #5 # Provision for long service payments 16 29,053 -
BARBF AR A - RFIE TR &R 430,759 446,952
Retirement benefit costs — MPF scheme
9,974,241 9,484,670

20 b EHBRTFTERA Rent, rates and permit fees

TSRS B R BT 6 75630,5008 T(—FF —FF4E © 630,5004E)0) EARIEEEHSUEA -
Included in the amount, $630,500 (2010: $630,500) represents operating lease rentals for market premises.
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21 HESKEAREFRE 09584k Net deficit from VMO Agricultural Development Fund

AFEREATRRFFRASHOUANR I B4 TF:

The income and expenditure of VMO Agricultural Development Fund for the year are as follows:

ff3x 2011 2010
Note
A Income
Ak B £ RieA A 4 # )% FarmFest income 1,742,750 1,406,277
4RATAE A B # Interest income on bank deposits 813,342 867,479
H 44 % Other income 59,863 212,734
2,615,955 2,486,490
%X i Expenditure
B #3t3) Land rehabilitation scheme
- {% % R 14 Repairs and maintenance (29,314) (226,766)
- 33| Training - (11,880)
- %38 ¥ 4t Miscellaneous expenditure (5,346) (2,050)
- 3 % Depreciation (113,118) (119,091)
- IR B2 Recreational Farming (470,091) -
REARUELIARETRNER - (395,184)
Construction and improvement of communal agricultural facilities
3 J& 15 4038 & 31 &) Crop Development Programmes Promotion
- ¥ # Depreciation (11,743) (11,743)
- B RMAT B KBS 24 (269,948) (178,722)
Net deficit from sales of accredited local vegetables
- 4 % B Other expenses (3,561,919) (4,526,679)
BRIREBE HR 4 E Controlled - Environment Greenhouse Production
- #7 % Depreciation (5,147) (1,497)
- 4% B Other expenses (2,214,600) (2,156,266)
B J% A # B ¥ Promotion of Organic Farming
- ¥t % Depreciation (7,304) (2,125)
- 4% & A #& 3 % % 54% Net deficit from sales of organic vegetables 25 (564,536) (604,805)

- £ % M Other expenses
AR 8 FAR Lt 3
Voluntary Registration Scheme of Local Vegetable Farms
- #7 # Depreciation
- £ & M Other expenses
Abib R E SRR
Promotion of Local Agricultural and Fisheries Products
- RHE R AR A F ¥ 3 FarmFest
B ERERE BRI T HHRIE
Improvement to VMO's wholesale marketing facilities and services

(12,305,865)

(2,633,587)

(4,105,104)

- #7 % Depreciation (895,237)
- B4 %A Other expenses (1,555,959)
WE S BBREGG L EEE 26(b) (10,982)
Loss on disposal of property,plant and equipment
H 4t % Miscellaneous expenses (1,250)

AEE %4 Net deficit for the year 8
74

(10,771,497)

(542,675)
(3,487,986)

(3,510,727)

(352,562)
(144,391)
(4,810)

(1,350)

(28,761,050)

(27,052,806)

(26,145,095)

(24,566,316)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22

23

24

HEHERERES$EH Net surplus from VMO Loan Fund

M 3E 2011 2010

Note
¥ # Income
4B.47 47 #.#] & Interest on bank deposits 58,397 37,233
#HE Y% R FHA A Interest on VMO Loans 16,860 16,246
HERERERZBE/ (IR 7(a) 37,585 (53,277)
Premium / (discount) on amortization of VMO Loans
HEHKFREHORABHEED 7(b) 100,455 38,447
Write-back of provision for impairment of VMO Loans

213,297 38,649

% i Expenditure . "
A B % B4 Netsurplus for the year 7(a) 213,297 38,649

#,38 Taxation
A RBEESEG R I2ERBEEH H874 0 ARBB LHMNMRE » Bt BAEFFREH -

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Organization is exempted under Section 87
of the Inland Revenue Ordinance, Cap 112 from any tax chargeable under the Ordinance.

3 5k A % &t #] Crop Development Programmes Promotion

AEBESEERRFREGR LT ¢
The income and expenditure on the sales of accredited vegetables for the year are as follows:
i3 2011 2010
Note
A s B3 % 45 & Sales of accredited local vegetables 619,702 289,572
4 & s A Cost of inventories sold (298,555) (143,271)
& R £#| Gross profit 321,147 146,301
H3E &% % H Direct operating expenses
B T i # R H .45 4] Employee benefit expenditure (364,556) (213,835)
44 & 1M 4 Sales commission (184,773) (86,872)
iE #; & Transportation charges (15,877) (13,562)
A B & #%# Stores and equipment (18,426) (8,727)
#:18 ¥ 1 Miscellaneous expenses (7,463) (2,027)

(591,095) (325,023)

A% K ¥ B 4% Net deficit for the year 21 (269,948) (178,722)
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25

26

(a)

BRAE MBI Promotion of Organic Farming
RERIHERBHZRAYBSANT -

The income and espenditure on the sales of organic vegetables for the year are as follows:

M3z
Note
% MR % 44 & Sales of organic vegetables
4% 1 A&k A Cost of inventories sold

$R 5% Gross profit

H#48 4 % i Direct operating expenses

B T ¥ # & #1444 Employee benefit expenditure
4% 1§ 1M 4 Sales commission

E & & Transportation charges

A B B % # Stores and equipment

¥4 & % 1§ & Publication and publicity

# 38 % Miscellaneous expenses

A48 K % §54k Net deficit for the year 21

3,4 7 ¥ & 43 Notes to the statement of Cash flows
2EMAWFRE

Net Cash used in operations

A4 E 4k Deficit for the year
34458 B Adjustments for:
- R AT A7 2 & d o\ Interest income on bank deposits
- B R BB R B EH AWM Interest income on VMO Loans
- 4 % (44 3£6) Depreciation (note 6)
-HREREREHORABHEED (Wi 22)
Write-back of provision for impairment of VMO Loans (note 22)
-8 5 AR A (M 10 )
Provision for impairment of trade receivables (note 10 )
- MBRBGOHEER/(BH (LT HE (D)
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, plant and equipment (note b below)
-HEA R R SR B HRGEE)/FE (W3 22 )

(Premium)/discount on amortization of VMO Loans (note 22)

%1% % £ % % : Changes in working capital:

- 12 % Inventories

- BESRE R T VMO Loans

- E R 2 ¥4 Provision for long service payments
- 9 5 R H4& B2k Trade and other receivables

- % B R H 44+ 2% Trade and other payables

- 3# ¥ 3% 8 A4 Vegetable buyers' deposits

- Rox @ # s 8 & & Assets under defined benefit plan

BE AR e FRE

Net cash used in operations
76

2011 2010
2,860,579 2,309,355
(1,044,337) (766,843)
1,816,242 1,542,512
(1,355,082)  (1,258,218)

(582,864) (490,441)
(111,038) (123,944)
(204,496) (168,825)
(9,749) (13,252)
(117,549) (92,637)
(2,380,778)  (2,147,317)
(564,536) (604,805)
2011 2010
(5,594,897)  (6,413,774)
(1,894,352)  (2,647,502)
(16,860) (16,246)
3,804,497 4,248,884
(100,455) (38,447)
100,000 ;
66,294 (994)
(37,585) 53,277
(3,673,358)  (4,814,802)
26,341 (107,148)
51,500 (135,400)
(356,470)  (1,751,243)
(370,340)  (1,051,609)
(52,759) 2,239,432
195,026 186,398
(1,338,000) 162,000
(5,518,060)  (5,272,372)
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26 B4 ME R MK Notes to the statement of Cash flows (Continued)

b) £RLMEFLEN HEWE MSARBHAMFRALKE
In the statement of cash flows , proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise:

Pt 3E 2011 2010
Note
& ® %14 Net book amount 6 67,244 77,906

W¥E - BRERRGERGHEE(ER)EE

(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment recognized in:

- £4b % & other expenditure fig 4% 75 (55,312) 5,804
Appendix 6
-RERERBEBFRACHFES 21 (10,982) (4,810)
net deficit from VMO Agricultural Development Fund
(66,294) 994
HEME -~ BB RRMEHHIFHRE 950 78,900

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment

27 4 & %1 F 7 ## Operating lease commitment

RIS 2 T35 P s A B T E T R AR S S i (B B A AR T
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease in respect of market
premises are as follows:

2011 2010
AR —4
No later than one year 157,625 157,625
28 2% % A {84 Key management compensation
2011 2010
HriERAmin E Tah 417,464 428,798

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
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Appendix 10

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE TRUSTEE OF THE AGRICULTURAL
PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND

(Established under the Agricultural Products (Marketing)
Ordinance, Chapter 277)

We have audited the financial statements of the
Agricultural Products Scholarship Fund (the “Fund”) set
out on Appendix 15, which comprise the balance sheet as
at 31 March 2011, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in funds and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Trustee's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Agricultural Products (Marketing) Ordinance, Chapter
277, requires the Trustee to keep proper accounts. The
Trustee is responsible for the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
for such internal control as the Trustee determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE TRUSTEE OF THE AGRICULTURAL
PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND (Continued)
(Established under the Agricultural Products (Marketing)
Ordinance, Chapter 277)

Auditor's Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Trustee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Fund as at 31 March 2011
and of its deficit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

(Signed) PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 August 2011



RALRELS
AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND

(& BAER  HELBRABR)

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

KEAGRE
BALANCE SHEET

fi 3£
Note

XA ASSETS
JE#i% E A Non-Current assets
# % 8|41 B 942 F Held-to-maturity investments 6

%, B 2 Interest-free loans 7

% KA Current assets
7 5|43 A 8945 F Held-to-maturity investments 6
%, & % 2k Interest-free loans 7
J& W #) B, Interest receivable
A% 3MER @ |1 57 B0 69 SRAT 3K
Bank deposits with maturities of more
than three months and within one year
B4 B4 518 ¥ Cash and cash equivalents 8

4% A Total assets

%4 FUNDS
HERETRHLHZESH
Capital allocated by the Vegetable Marketing

Organization
# 17 B 42 Accumulated surplus 9

o

4 X 4 Total funds

# ff LIABILITIES
i) R &M Current and total liabilities
JE AT 2k 3B Accruals

s 5 R 8 1k Total funds and liabilities

Msk 15 ey B AR A 6y RIS -

The notes on Appendix 15 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Mk 11 2 1S B RACHERAN E——FAA+= B -

b+ —

Appendix 11
RZAZ+—8
As at 31 March
2011 2010
4,752,052 5,956,376
6,604 31,635
4,758,656 5,988,011
1,192,988 -
25,004 50,463
62,315 64,591
2,030,000 2,100,000
31,048 144,461
3,341,355 2,359,515
8,100,011 8,347,526
8,000,000 8,000,000
69,565 319,080
8,069,565 8,319,080
30,446 28,446
8,100,011 8,347,526

The financial statements on Appendix 11 to 15 were approved by the Trustee on 12 August 2011.

fEatA
(Signed) Trustee
RREENE
LEUNG Siu-fai
&
Hong Kong
80



RERRELS
AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND

(MAAZERNS FAELBEASL)

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

AW A K
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

¥ A Income

HEDHPAKFTAHH LA

Interest income on held-to-maturity investments

4R AT 75 2 A Bofi N Interest income on bank deposits
FRNCES Y Pt

Premium on amortisation of interest-free loans
REBRHBAEEHEEE

Written back of impairment of interest-free loans

% & Expenditure

A% B 65 B 4 Auditor's remuneration

#5 # & Scholarships

By % 4 Grants

HED A ART a4

Amortisation of held-to-maturity investments
4847 & M Bank charges

A4 K 54k Deficit for the year

AEEEES W B Other comprehensive income for the year

AFRBESER

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Mok 15 G4t A KRS SRR G A3 5 -

The notes on Appendix 15 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Mé&+ =

Appendix 12

HREZA=Z+—BLFE
Year ended 31 March

Mi3x 2011 2010
Note

210,210 230,537
12,044 15,081
7 2,996 8,852
7 - 1,151
225,250 255,621

(29,000) (27,000)

(432,500) (369,500)

- (27,000)

(11,336) (5,344)

(1,929) (2,467)

(474,765) (431,311)

(249,515) (175,690)

(249,515) (175,690)



RAESREL S
AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND

(A EERANS A LBRABT)

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

E 24 L F S
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

418 &7F Balance at 1 April

EES & Y
Total comprehensive loss for the year

3 A 318 &7F Balance at 31 March

WHak 15 o M 3E 2 AR B 7 30 R 6 AR 81 5 o

The notes on Appendix 15 are an integral part of these financial statemsnts.
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3£
Note

M+ =

Appendix 13

2011 2010
8,319,080 8,494,770

(249,515) (175,690)
8,069,565 8,319,080
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Appendix 14

RESREES
AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND

(BB AR A LEABT)

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

AReRER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HBEZA=Z=+—BLFE
Year ended 31 March

Mt 2011 2010
Note
A 3L ) A M #97$ 3,4 Net cash used in operating activities 10 (407,943) (329,244)
B FZ 834 Cash flows from investing activities
4| B Interest received 224,530 309,032
FEHHAGEETRA - 2,500,000
Proceeds from held-to-maturity investments
BAHEINBNKRE - (2,513,800)

Purchases of held-to-maturity investments

A2B3MEA M £ MBI ARITER

REFER 70,000 -
Net withdrawal of bank deposits with maturities of

more than three months and within one year

BREAFHALNFRS 294,530 295,232
Net cash generated from investing activities

RERALERBFRY (113,413) (34,012)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

EMRERRALEEY 144,461 178,473
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

SHALBRALERY 8 31,048 144,461

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

sk 1S B E B A B MA G LRI -

The notes on Appendix 15 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(a)

(b)

2.1
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Mkt 5
Appendix 15

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

The financial statements of the Agricultural Products
Scholarship Fund (the "Fund") are prepared in
accordance with Section 9E(1) of the Agricultural
Products (Marketing) Ordinance, Cap. 277. The Fund
was established for the following objects:

the provision of scholarships, grants and loans for the
education and training of persons who are employed in
agriculture and agricultural product marketing industries
in Hong Kong and their families and dependants; and

the provision of scholarships, grants and loans for the
education and training of persons who wish to enter the
agriculture and agricultural product marketing industries
in Hong Kong.

The address of the Fund is 757 Lai Chi Kok Road,
Cheung Sha Wan Wholesale Vegetable Market, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Trustee
on 12 August 2011.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“ HKFRS ) and under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Fund's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing HKFRS effective in 2010

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing HKFRS which are mandatory
for the Fund's accounting year commencing on or after 1
April 2010. These new standards, amendments and
interpretations do not have any impact on the Fund's
financial statements since they are not relevant to the
Fund's operation.

New standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing HKFRS that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Fund.

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing HKFRS (collectively, the “ Amendments )
have been published that are mandatory for the Fund's
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2011.
Some of the Amendments are relevant and applicable to
the fund; however, they have not been early adopted in
these financial statements. The Fund has commenced,
but not yet completed, an assessment of the impact of the
applicable Amendments on its results of operations and
financial position. The Trustee is of the view that the
impact on the financial statements would not be
significant other than certain additional disclosures.

2.2 Foreign currency translation

(a)

85

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Fund are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Fund operates (“the functional
currency ”’ ). The financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.
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AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions and valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

2.3 Interest-free loans

Interest-free loans are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in non-current
assets, except for those with maturities less than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These are classified
as current assets.

Interest-free loans are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of interest-free loans is
established when there is objective evidence that the
Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of loans. The amount of
the provision for impairment is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.4 Financial assets

86

The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments. The classification depends on the purposes
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.
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AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS SCHOLARSHIP FUND

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Trustee has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. If the Fund was to sell other
than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
investments, the whole category would be tainted and
reclassified as available for sale. Held-to-maturity
investments are included in non-current assets, except for
those with maturities than 12 months after the balance
sheet date; these are classified as current assets.

Held-to-maturity investments are recognised initially at
fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of the investments is established when there
is objective evidence that the investment issuers have a
financial difficulty in paying the contractual amounts.
The amount of the provision for impairment is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables are mainly classified as
“Interest-free loans”,“interest receivable”,“bank deposits
with maturities of more than three months and within one
year” and “ cash and cash equivalents” in the balance
sheet.

The Fund assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances and
bank deposits with original maturities of three months or
less.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.6 Revenue recognition

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Sundry income is recognised on an accruals basis.

2.7 Capital allocated by the Vegetable Marketing

Organization

The funding is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as income and then transferred to
the “ capital allocated by the Vegetable Marketing
Organization™, which is used to support the operation of
the Fund.

Financial and capital risks management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks factors: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Fund's overall
risk  management procedures focus on  the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Fund's financial
performance.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises where future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the Fund's
functional currency. The Fund is not exposed to material
foreign exchange risk as it has no significant transactions
which are denominated in foreign currency. In the
opinion of the Trustee, the Fund has minimal exposure to
the foreign exchange risk as the transactions are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and no sensitivity
analysis is performed.

Credit risk

The Fund has policies in place for the control and
monitoring of its credit risk. The credit risk of the Fund
is primarily attributable to the interest-free loans, held-to-
maturity investments and deposits at banks.
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Financial and capital risks management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of the interest-free loans receivables,
individual evaluations are performed on all borrowers.
For each loan granting, the Fund has policy to assess the
eligibility of the granting. Besides, in order to minimise
the credit risk resulting from counterparty default, the
Fund has policy to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts and will make specific
provision for those balances which cannot be recovered.
In the opinion of the Trustee, the credit risk is considered
to be low.

The credit risk on liquid funds and held-to-maturity
investments are limited because the counterparties are
banks and bonds issuers which are with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
As such, no significant credit risk is anticipated.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient bank deposits and bank balances. In the
opinion of the Trustee, the Fund does not have any
significant liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial and capital risks management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2011, the maturity analysis of the
financial liabilities is as follows:

2011 2010
Less than one year
30,446

Accruals 28,446

Cash flow interest rate risk

Other than the bank deposits, the Fund has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The
held-to-maturity investments carry at a fixed coupon rate.
The Fund's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. Accordingly, in the opinion of the Trustee, the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is considered to
be low and no sensitively analysis is performed.

3.2 Fund risk management

The Fund's objectives when managing fund are to
safeguard the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern and to have sufficient funding for future
operations. The Fund's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital of the Fund comprises its capital allocated by
the Vegetable Marketing Organization and accumulated
surplus.

3.3 Fair value estimation
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Fair value measurement by level of hierarchy has not
been stated as the Fund has no financial instruments
measured at fair value in the balance sheet.

The carrying value less impairment provision of loans
and receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Fund
for similar financial instruments, unless the effect of
discounting is insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Trustee makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Trustee follows the guidance of Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 39 ¢ Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement ” ( *“ HKAS 39 ” ) on
classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-
maturity.  This classification requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Trustee
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such
investments to maturity.

If the Trustee fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for specific circumstances as explained in
HKAS 39, it will be required to reclassify the whole class
as available-for-sale financial assets. The investments
would therefore be measured at fair value instead of
amortised cost.
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5 4% T A 9% Financial instruments by category

AALHEBIEAIEUT ¢

The Fund’s financial instruments include the following:

#HEHNA
HRR REA
Held-to- ) L& &
maturity Loans and s
investments receivables Total
& & Assets
#201143A318 31 March 2011
HEIHMBERE (H3E6) 5,945,040 - 5,945,040
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 6)
REHEHR (M3E7) - 31,608 31,608
Interest-free loans (Note 7)
JEWCH] & Interest receivable - 62,315 62,315
KB 3 MA@ | PR 6 BT 3K : 2,030,000 2,030,000

Bank deposits with maturities of more than
three months and within one year

RERRLFF/Y (ML 8) - 31,048 31,048
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 8)

5,945,040 2,154,971 8,100,011
#201043A318 31 March 2010
HE2IBARE (FHIE6) 5,956,376 = 5,956,376
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 6)
RERHR(MHET - 82,098 82,098
Interest-free loans (Note 7)
JE i #) & Interest receivable - 64,591 64,591
RBIEA® | ERNBEABEATER - 2,100,000 2,100,000

Bank deposits with maturities of more than
three months and within one year

RERRLEEW (M) - 144,461 144,461
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 8)

5,956,376 2,391,150 8,347,526
2011 2010
BBAN - AR R A A Kb Bh &
Financial liabilities - other financial liabilities at amortised cost
JE 44 238 Accruals 30,446 28,446
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6 #HZ3%# 8 4K Held-to-maturity investments

2011 2010
LEBAETHRET A mAE 3,932,129 3,945,743
Listed in Hong Kong, at amortised cost
FELTEHIRE A R 2,012,911 2,010,633
Unlisted, at amortised cost

5,945,040 5,956,376
AT EZB M B BB RGT S
Less: Current portion of held-to-maturity investments (1,192,988) -
JE 5 %7 ¥ o~ Non-current portion 4,752,052 5,956,376
HEHNMABRER NS FAL -
Held-to-maturity investments are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
ARLAH EEARARSGEARKES LEFZH P HREHRGHE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of held-to-maturity investments.
7 % B H# Interest-free loans

2011 2010
4718 44 Balance at 1 April 88,304 183,630
A JE 238 2 Repayments during the year (53,486) (95,326)
3A318 &4 Balance at 31 March 34.818 88.304
B AR18 Aitisy (6,206) (15,058)
Less: Accumulated amortisation at 1 April
44 248 44 5518 Premium on amortisation of loans 2,996 8,852
3H31H &3t # 4§ Accumulated amortisation at 31 March (3,210) (6,206)
% 882k - /$%8 Interest-free loans - net 31,608 82,098
B RS ERMEE S
Less: Current portion of interest-free loans (25,004) (50,463)
JER B34 Non-current portion 6,604 31,635
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7 %88 #% (3%) Interest-free loans (Continued)

B I N EEAGELEERFERAETHMA - R201143A318 » RALEER(=E—FF 1 5008 L& LB H{e
T EBMA)TEOMEE ERMA - ARSRIFAEMERTIFHIIFL -

The interest-free loans that are less than four months past due are not considered impaired. As at 31 March 2011, no interest-
free loans (2010: HK$500 was past due but not impaired) was past due and impaired. The Fund does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

RARRAEEHH R T

Movements on the provision for impairment of interest-free loans are as follows:

2011 2010
4B 18 &% At 1 April - 1,151
%, 8 B k{448 © Written back of impairment on interest-free loans - (1,151)

#3H318 &4 At 31 March - -

#2011FB201043 8318 » %A BERANGTAEM -
The interest free loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars at 31 March 2011 and 2010.

AL BN FRARGRSEARRKES LEBKKRG 2 TFHE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the receivables mentioned above.

8 AL RH 4L LMY Cash and cash equivalents
2011 2010

SRAT AR BAE B R e ) B & BB AR 3R 31,048 144,461
Bank balances and maximum exposure to credit risk

20114 &201043 318 R4 R\ AL EEH BEARAUSTAHEMR -

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents is denominated in Hong Kong dollars at 31 March 2011 and 2010.
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9 34 Funds
REGER
HEZALH
(Fi3E)
Capital
allocated by
the Vegetable A
Marketing e
Organization Accumulated i X1 ]
(Note) surplus Total
200944 A 18 # 77 Balance at 1 April 2009 8,000,000 494,770 8,494,770
#8472 4-K548 Total comprehensive loss _ (175,690) (175,690)
201043 A318 R2010%4 A 18 &1
Balance at 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 8,000,000 319,080 S3I0,080
%25 E51E Total comprehensive loss - (249,515) (249,515)
201143 A 318 4 4% Balance at 31 March 2011 8,000,000 69,565 8,069,565
[ 3E:
HEREABERERBEZASCBUAEIHFAKLLNEE -
Note:

The balance represents capital allocated by the Vegetable Marketing Organization to support the operations of the Fund.

10 BETEEIFT AR S Net cash used in operating activities

2011 2010
AR 54 Deficit for the year (249,515) (175,690)
tHA: Adjustments for:
- SATAF R e ) & Interest income on bank deposits (12,044) (15,081)
-HEIHARETAMEEA (210,210) (230,537)
Interest income on held-to-maturity investments
-HZE BT 11,336 5,344
Amortisation of held-to-maturity investments
- RS BRI RE (2,996) (8,852)
Premium on amortisation of interest-free loans
- % EE R E
Wtitten back of impairment of interest-free loans - (1,151
(463,429) (425,967)
%38 & £ % %): Changes in working capital:
-% & 5 # Interest-free loans 53,486 95,326
-HE 4+ 2k1E Accruals 2,000 1,397
A2 gL 8 PR A #9314 Net cash used in operating activities (407,943) (329,244)
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